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Return Receipt Requested

May 10, 2011

Arapahoe County Board of Commissioners
5334 S. Prince Street
Littleton, CO 80120

RE:  Compliance Advisory Related to May 3, 2011 Compliance Inspection
Kiowa-Bennett Yard, 4374 S. CR 137
Bennett, Colorado
SW ARA KBY 1.6

Dear Commissioners:

This Compliance Advisory provides notice related to information gained during an inspection conducted by the
Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment, Hazardous Materials and Waste Management Division
(the “Department”) on May 3, 2011. The purpose of the inspection was to evaluate compliance with the
Regulations Pertaining to Solid Waste Sites and Facilities, 6 CCR 1007-2, Part 1 (“the Regulations”). The
Department advises you that the information gained during the inspection indicate that you may have violated
Colorado’s solid waste laws. Department personnel will review the facts established, and this notice may be
revised to include additions or clarifications as a result of that review.

Please be aware that you are responsible for complying with the State solid waste regulations and that there are
civil penalties for failing to do so. The issuance of this Compliance Advisory does not limit or preclude the
Department from pursuing its enforcement options concerning this inspection including issuance of a Compliance
Order and/or sceking an assessment of civil penalties. Also, this Compliance Advisory does not constitute a bar
to enforcement action for conditions that are not addressed in this Compliance Advisory, or conditions found
during future file reviews or inspections of your facility. The Department will take into consideration your
response to the requested actions listed below for each cited deficiency cited below (with regulatory citation
noted) in its consideration of enforcement options.

Deficiency 1:  Arapahoe County disposed of solid waste at the Kiowa-Bennett Yard, 4373 8. CR 137, Bennett,
Colorado, a location not having a certificate of designation. This is in violation of CRS 30-20-102(1), CRS
30-20-102(2), and Section 1.3.3 of 6 CCR 1007-2.
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Requested Actions 1: Arapahoe County is requested to characterize potential impacts from the illegal disposal
activity and to perform remediation as necessary to protect human health and the environment. Toward that end,
Arapahoe County is requested to:

A) within thirty (30) calendar days of your receipt of this correspondence, provide the county’s
written standard operating procedure for disposing of paint striping waste (both daily disposal
and annual cleanout);

B) within thirty (30) calendar days of your receipt of this correspondence, submit a soil sampling and
remediation plan for Department review and approval prior to implementation;

Q) within thirty (30) calendar days of your receipt of Department approval of the soil sampling and
remediation plan, implement such plan referred to in B) above;

D) within thirty (30) calendar days of implementation of the soil sampling and remediation plan,
submit a report to the Department detailing the implementation of such plan, inclusive of
documentation of activities conducted under the plan, field notes, photographs, disposal
receipts and legally defensible laboratory data and other documentation reportable under the
approved plan;

E) within sixty (60) calendar days of receipt of this correspondence, submit a groundwater
characterization plan for Department review and approval prior to implementation;

F) within sixty (60) calendar days of receipt of Department approval of the groundwater
characterization plan, implement such plan referred to in E) above;

G) within sixty (60) calendar days of implementation of the groundwater characterization plan,

submit a report to the Department detailing the implementation of such plan, inclusive of
documentation of activities conducted under the plan, field notes, well logs and construction
details, and legally defensible laboratory data and other documentation reportable under the
approved plan. Depending on what the groundwater characterization data shows, the facility
may be requested to perform groundwater remediation as well.

Deficiency 2:  Arapahoe County operates a recycling facility at the Kiowa-Bennett Yard for recycling asphalt
from county road projects that is not registered with CDPHE. This is in violation of Section 8.4 of the
Regulations.

Requested Action 2:  Within thirty (30) calendar days of your receipt of this correspondence, Arapahoe County
is requested to register the Kiowa-Bennett Yard as a recycling facility under Section 8 of the Regulations.

Deficicncy 3:  Arapahoe County manages paint waste at the Eastern Service Center in a manner that allows
disposal of incidental amounts of paint waste onto the ground. While incidental in nature, this activity
technically also falls under the regulatory category of improper or illegal disposal of solid waste in violation
of CRS 30-20-102(1), CRS 30-20-102(2), and Section 1.3.3 of 6 CCR 1007-2.

Requested Actions 3:

A) Arapahoe County is requested to follow, effectively immediately, its standard operating procedure, as
verbally stated in the inspection, of drying the paint waste generated daily on an impervious
sacrificial surface. In addition, if the County so desires, it may develop standard operating procedures
and best management practices for the daily cleanout activities at the Eastern Service Center to
separate the activity from the regulatory definition of solid waste disposal, and thereby eliminate the
need for the facility to obtain a certificate of designation.

B) Within thirty (30) calendar days of your receipt of this correspondence, paint waste inadvertently
disposed of to the ground should be collected and properly disposed of, with photographs and
disposal receipts provided to the Department within forty-five (45) calendar days of your receipt of
this correspondence.
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You are encouraged to document your return-to-compliance by submitting the correspondences noted
above back to the Department according to the time frames noted above, and to facilitate resolution of the
issues identified above in this Compliance Advisory, we also encourage you to contact this office by May 31,
2011, at one of the numbers listed below and, where necessary, schedule a meeting:

A. To discuss the Compliance Advisory and answer any questions that you may have;
B. To develop an alternative schedule for correcting the deficiencies noted above; or
C. To submit information necessary to show that the deficiency is not a violation of Colorado’s solid

waste laws.
Copies of the inspection report and photographic log are enclosed with this Compliance Advisory.

We encourage you to contact myself at 303.692.3455 or Charles Johnson, Program Manager for the Solid Waste
and Materials Management Program at 303.692.3348 concerning the deficiencies detailed under this Compliance

Advisory and/or to set a meeting to discuss this Compliance Advisory.

Sincerely,

erry Henderson, Unit Leader
Solid Waste Compliance Assurance Unit
Hazardous Materials and Waste Management Division

Enclosures

cc: Brian Hlavicek, Tri-County Health Department, 15400 E. 14" Place, Ste. 309, Aurora, CO 80011
Jason King, AGO
Steve Miller, Arapahoe County Office of the County Attorney, 5334 S. Prince Street, Littleton, CO 80166
David Schmit, Arapahoe County Director of Public Works, 10730 E. Briarwood Ave., Ste. 100,
Centennial, CO 80112
Suzanne Wicklund, Tri-County Health Department, 15400 E. 14"™ Place, Ste. 309, Aurora, CO 80011

Solid Waste Tracking



SOLID WASTE INSPECTION WORKSHEET

Agency: Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment
Hazardous Materials and Waste Management Division

Date: May 3, 2011 Times: 8:20AM — 10:30AM

Sites: Arapahoe Cty. Kiowa Bennett Yard
4374 South CR 137
Bennett, Colorado

Eastern Service Center
4405 South CR 129
Bennett, Colorado

Inspectors: Jerry Henderson, HMWMD
David Foster, HMWMD

Inspection: Announced
Facility Representatives: Dave Schmit, Director of Public Works and Development
Steve Miller, Environmental Manager, Office of the County
Attorney
Jim Katzer, Road and Bridge Division Manager
Jim Bunner, Road and Bridge Div. Operations Supervisor
Other Participants: Suzanne Wicklund, Tri-County Health Department
File Code: SW/ARA/KBY 1.6

On May 3, 2011, inspectors from the Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment
(the Department), conducted an announced complaint inspection of the above-referenced
properties located in Arapahoe County, Colorado. The purpose of the inspection was to determine
compliance of the facility with the requirements set forth in the Solid Wastes Disposal Sites and
Facilities Act (“the Act”), CRS 30-20-100.5 et seq. and with the Regulations Pertaining to Solid
Waste Sites and Facilities, 6 CCR 1007-2 (“the Regulations™).

Site Background

The Department received a confidential complaint that paint waste was being dumped at the
Kiowa-Bennett Yard operated by Arapahoe County. The complainant had not observed the
activity personally, but had viewed a video tape taken of the alleged activity while it was
occurring. The complainant, however, was not in possession of the tape and could not identify
the individual who had taken it, making it difficult for Division inspectors to follow up with the
videographer for purposes of substantiating the authenticity of the video and the details
surrounding when and where the video was taken. The complainant did state that video included
enough detail to ascertain the location where it was taken was the Kiowa-Bennett yard.

On May 2, 2011, Inspector Henderson and Jason King of the Colorado AGO teleconferenced
with Jack Bush of the Arapahoe County Office of the County Attorney. Mr. Bush granted the



inspectors permission to access the site the following morning for purposes of performing an
inspection under the Colorado Hazardous Waste Act and Colorado Solid Waste Act, respectively.

--Site Inspection--

Kiowa-Bennett Yard: Inspectors met the Arapahoe County representatives near the gate on CR
137 at the southwest corner of the facility. A pre-inspection conference explaining the nature of
the complaint was held prior to beginning the inspection. County representatives explained that
the Kiowa-Bennett Yard has primarily been used for storage of materials and for recycling of
asphalt from county road projects.

Arapahoe County owns one piece of paint striping equipment, per County personnel.
Maintenance activities on the paint striping equipment were explained as follows. On a daily
basis, at the end of each working day, the equipment necessitates having the remaining paint
evacuated from its jets. This is done at the Eastern Service Center just west of the Kiowa-Bennett
Yard located at 4405 S. CR 129, and the residual paint is disposed of by applying it to a test strip
of asphalt at that location. On an annual basis, at the end of each striping season, the equipment
is subject to a thorough cleaning of the lines and of the paint reservoir. The paint striping season
runs from April to October, weather depending. The annual equipment cleaning would typically
happen in the fall, but for the 2010 season it occurred in January 2011. The equipment apparently
has two 150 gallon reservoirs, but County personnel stated that the amount of liquid waste
generated during the cleaning procedures, which involves flushing water through the equipment,
would be in the range of tens of gallons. Inspectors asked to be able to speak with the paint crew
to verify those numbers, but that request was denied. Arapahoe County did provide a copy of the
MSDS sheets for both white and yellow paints recently in use. The products were sourced locally
from a company called, Colorad Paint, and the product names were Traffic Latex White and
Traffic Latex Yellow, respectively. The MSDS lists the material as water based latex with no
applicable flash point. Arapahoe County has determined that the material is not hazardous waste.
The MSDS sheets are Attachment 1 to this report.

Up through 2008, the annual cleanout of the paint striping equipment occurred at the Peoria Street
vard in a wash bay that discharges to the sanitary sewer (Arapahoe Water & Sanitation). After
the opening of the Eastern Service Center, Arapahoe County attempted to conduct annual
cleanout of the paint striping equipment at that location at the end of the 2009 striping season.
The Eastern Service Center has a wastewater treatment system whose filters became fouled as a
result of the introduction of the paint striping waste into the wastewater treatment system.
Damage to the wastewater treatment system cost Arapahoe County roughly $55,000. In lieu of
having access to a facility with a wastewater treatment system designed to handle paint waste,
Mr. Miller stated that the standard operating procedure for this operation would involve spraying
the paint waste onto an impervious, sacrificial surface, letting the paint dry and then disposing of
it in a solid waste landfill. Inspectors requested a copy of the county’s SOP for this operation.

As of the date of the inspection, Arapahoe County was still investigating how the paint striping
equipment was cleaned out at the end of the 2010 striping season. According to County
personnel, the cleanout apparently occurred later than usual, in the late January to early February
2011 time frame. In addition, Arapahoe County’s protocol for disposing of this waste appears not
to have been followed, according to Mr. Miller. Per videotape viewed by County personnel, and
provided by Channel 4 news, County personnel stated that the cleaning of the paint striping
equipment in late January or early February 2011 appears to have occurred at the Kiowa-Bennett
Yard, and the solid waste resulting from the cleanout operations appears to have been disposed of



by means of dumping such waste onto the ground somewhere on the premises. [Note: solid waste
is a regulatory term that does not refer to the physical state of the waste; that is, solid waste
includes waste in solid, liquid or gasesous form.] The inspectors had also viewed the portion of
the video that was aired on a Channel 4 report during the evening news on 5/2/2011. Arapahoe
County officials confirmed that the Kiowa-Bennett Yard has not been issued a certificate of
designation for solid waste disposal.

The inspectors, accompanied by County personnel, proceeded to conduct a site inspection to
locate where the paint dumping occurred. A location in the northeast quadrant of the site was
identified that matched what was shown in the Channel 4 video. See Photos 2 and 3. The
apparent location where the solid waste disposal occurred is on a flat area on top of a soil
stockpile, with a berm just east of the dumping location. See Photos 4 and 5. The dumping
focation was estimated to be elevated by about eight feet with respect to surrounding topography.
See Photo 2. Tire tracks from the paint striping equipment are still visible. See Photo 7 and 11.
Residual solids from the paint waste are still visible on the surface of the ground. See Photos 8,
9, 10, 12 and 13. The paint stain still remaining on the ground did not suggest that the paint
waste ran off into the ditch to the north. An area of soil cracking indicative of standing liquid
marked the outlines of a depression near the dumping location. See Photo 16.

At the time of the inspection, inspectors inquired about 3 55-gallon drums on the southeast end of
the property. A fourth drum was empty. Arapahoe County later reported by telephone on 5/4/11
that the drums were filled with grass seed (i.e. a product not a waste).

Arapahoe County also recycles asphalt at the Kiowa-Bennett Yard from county road projects.
Section 8.4 of the Regulations requires recycling facilities to register with CDPHE and file an
annual report by May 1 of each year. This recycling operation is not registered with CDPHE as a
recycling facility, and has never filed an annual report.

Eastern Service Center: The inspectors also conducted a limited inspection of the paint striping
cleanout area at the Eastern Service Center. It is a strip of asphalt running in a north-south
direction and located at the west end of the property, perhaps 1/8 of a mile in length (rough
estimate, no measurement attempted). The daily disposal of a small amount of paint remaining in
the jets is accomplished by spraying it onto the surface of the asphalt. Concerns relative to this
operation are twofold. First, the spray is not contained to the asphalt surface, but rather there is
also disposal directly to the ground. See Photos 18, 19 and 20. Additionally, the application rate
is not controlled such that liquid applied too thick subsequently cracks and then is subject to
weathering and produces paint chips that then need to be cleaned up. While this operation is
technically viewed as illegal disposal, some minor changes to the operation and implementation
of best management practices could both reduce any potential impact to the environment and
remove the activity from the regulatory definition of illegal dispsoal. See Findings below.

~Findings--

Both the Kiowa-Bennett Yard and the Eastern Service Center were found to be out of compliance
with the Act and the Regulations. The following violations were noted.

Deficiency 1: Arapahoe County disposed of solid waste at the Kiowa Bennett Yard, 4373 S. CR
137, Bennett, Colorado, a location not having a certificate of designation. This is in violation of
CRS 30-20-102(1), CRS 30-20-102(2), and Section 1.3.3 of 6 CCR 1007-2.

LS}



Deficiency 2: Arapahoe County operates a recycling facility at the Kiowa-Bennett Yard for
asphalt from county road projects that is not registered with CDPHE. This is in violation of
Section 8.4 of the Regulations.

Deficiency 3: Arapahoe County manages paint waste at the Eastern Service Center in a manner
that allows disposal of incidental amounts of paint waste onto the ground. While incidental in

nature, this activity technically is also illegal disposal of solid waste in violation of CRS 30-20-
102(1), CRS 30-20-102(2), and Section 1.3.3 of 6 CCR 1007-2.

Prepared by:

Signature: Date:

Reviewed by:

Signature: Date:
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SECTION 313:
* Componant (3) reportuble as SARA Title ITI section 313 chemical {s).*



MATERIAL S8AFETY PATA

Date Hrinted: 5/18/2010

Broduct Code: E81166 :
Product | Hems: TRAFFIC LAYTEX YELIOW F/p (TIFE IX)

Colorad Paint, 4747 Holly Streat, Demver, CO. 80216
24~-hour Bmargency Fhons: 1.B00.424,9800

TNTERNATIONAL REGULATIONS:

CANADIAN WHMIS:
NO INFORMATTON

I LR : ION ACT (CEPA) :
mmm'snrmrsmmmmmﬂz Wrms
SUBSTANGES LIST OR ARE EXEMPT FR(M REPORTING UNDER THE

EINECS: WO THFORMATTON
$TATE REGULATIONS:

CALIPORNIA PEOP 65 THIS PRODUCT CONTAINS TRACE
AMOUNTS OF A CHEMIGAL(S] XIOWN TO CALIFORNIA TO
CAUSE CPNCER. AND/OR BIRTH DEFECTS OR OTHER
REPROQUCTIVE HnRM

< 180 g/%L

16, OTHER DRFORMATION

MSDS Status: ACTIVE

@xsmmmmmmmwcmmmmmm
SHEET 1S ACCURATE, HOWEVER, BECAUSE THLS MATERIAL CAN BE
Lfssn UNDER CONDITIONS OVER WETCE WE HAVE NO. CONTROL, WE

GIVE NO WARRANTY, EXPRESSED DR IMPLIED AS TGO THE ADCURAGY

dF THE INFORMATION, PND ASSUME 8O RESPORSISTLITY FOR

u’r_mpz TO PERSCN, PROPERTY, OR BUSINESS ARISING FROM ITS USE.
]

i



MATERTIAL BAFETY DATA SEEET

Date Printed: 5/19/2010 Page: 5
pProduct Coda: ZB1166
m;‘um: TRAYFIC LATEX YELLOW F/D (TIPE II)

Cole, Pzint, 4747 Bolly Streek, Denvaer, CO. BO216
2-!-1:0-::4" Emergency Phoae: 1.800.424. 5300

7

MQz HO INEORMATION
;::mm/mcmnmzm: NOH CARCIBOGENIC
TERATOLOGY: NO INFORMATION

REPRODUCTION: KO INFORMATION

MUTAGENTCITY: NO IKFORMATION

12. ECOLOGIGAL INFORMATION
i

COLOGICAL INFORMAITON:
ISMS IC50 >2000MG/L, AQUATIC INVERTIBRATES
pcsc >100¢ MG/L, FISH LCS0 >1000 MG/L

M1

}m-r TOXIC TO PIANTS OR FISE. HOT BIODEGRADABLE, NOT

i3, DISPOSAL CONSIDERATIONS

DISPOSE OF IN ACCORDANCE WITH LOCAL, STATE AND FEDERAL
i GULATIONS. CGNTACT CHEMICAL WASTE DISPOSAL COMPANY
FOR FURTHER INFORHATION.

14. TRANSPORT INFORMATIONY (Not meant to be all inglusive)

HOT REGULATED

15. Gamm INFORMATIONY (Hot meant to be all inclusive - selected Zegulations reprasente

U.8. FEDERAL REGULATIONS:
THIS PRODUCT AND/OR ALL OF ITS COMPONENTS ARE BITHER

INCLUDED ON CR EXEMPT FROM TSCA INVENTORY OF CEEMICAL
SUBSTANCES
1

pSBA: NONHAZARDOUS

CERCLA: SARA HAZARD CATEGORY:
HONCARCINOGENIC HAZARD

i SECTION 313:
! Couponent {s) reportable as SARA Title 111 section 313 chomicalis).+



PATERIAL SAFEYTY DATA SRBREET
Date 'Printed: 5/19/2010 Page: 1

ictk Codéa: 81160
m’ Maiing TRAYFIC LAYEX WEIYE ¥/D (rree II)

colm:u’:( Paint, p‘u'? Bolly Street, Dabwer, £O. B021E

2“"*“1;‘ Emergimaay Fhone: 1.600.424.9300
Gask $ by we.
13463-67-7 5-<10
OSEA PEL: (TWAJ15 mg/m3, AOGTH TIV: (THA) 10 ng/ind t
YLIC R$SIN HIXTURE 5-<10
AHMONTA ROGIH 1WA 258%M, STEL 35PPM, OSHA PEL. JI5M40A{3 SOFRN
IMR~1, 3-PENTANEDIOL, HMONOISQBUTYRATE 25265-11-4 1—<5
2 HONE ESTABLLSEED
v ANMORTIA FO64 {17 1—<4
AOGIH TLV: 25 PR, OTHER: 25 Pem , .
TEOEROPANGL ' §7-63-b . 1w

OFHA PEL: 400 PP, ACGIE TIV: 400 BEM

3. ERSARDS TDENTIFICAMPTON P S DRI - W

“NOT CONSTHERED BAZARDOUS UNDER NORGAL CORDYTIONS,
HAY CAUSE BYE AND SKIN IRRTTATION : &

oA

ABOR OR




MATYERIAL SAPEYTY Dara SHEEET

Dat!b Printed: 5/197/2010 .

Codat Zniie0
jot Rume: mwxcmmrf»tmnl

Colofmd Pafnt, ¢94y olly Street, Demvar, Co. o216

REPRODUCTION

, NO INECRMATION

=

zq—h?n: Energency Fhone: 1.800.424.9300 ;
11 = = ———
. I .

SRIN: -
WASH AFYECTED ARBA WTTH sqap AND WATER. HASH: CONTAMINATED.

| | CIOTRING BEFORE REvse

m OF WATER; ‘CONSULT msxcm:

¥ HOE THAW 2.9 ML/is gAS ‘BEEN INGHESTED AMp
YOUITING HAS NoT OCCURED, EMISIS SHOULD BE
WITH SUPERVISION, jxge VICTIMS HEAD BELOw
PG 10 PREVENT ASPIRATTON. IF SYMPTOMS SUCH As

§ OF GAG REFLEX, CONMILSTONS OR UNCONSCTOUSNESS

BEFOR BMISIS, GASTRIC IAVAGE SHOULD BE

IDERED FOLLOWING IBTUBATION WITH A CUFFED

TUBE,.




i MATERIAL SAFETY DATA SHEET

i

N Date![Printed: 5/18/2010 Page: 1
Produgt Code: £miieo
Protﬁ:cltl#m: TRAFTIC LATEX WEITE F/D (IYRE IT)
Cui.orhlti Paint, 4747 Bolly Btreet, Deover, ©O. BO216
M-hoq: m FPhones: J‘Q“.ﬂ_‘.ﬂmﬁ
i :
1. CHEMICAT PRODUCT AND COMBANY IDENTIFICATION
1 - - b
| (See top of page)
I
2. COMPOSTTION/ INFORMBITON ON INGRED
1
!mt/ﬂmam Limits ' casE & by wWt.
TITARIUM DIOXIDE ¥3463-67-1 5e<10
OSHA PEL: (TWA}15 mg/m3, ACGIH TLV: (TWA) 10 mg/m3
LIC RESIN HIXIURE 5-<10
! AMONTA ACGIH 1WA 25PPM, STEL 3SPRM, OSHA PEL 3ISMGA43 SOPR
RIME-1, 3~-PENTANEDIOL, MONOISOBUTYRATE 25265774 1-<5
NGNE ESTABLISHED .
" ANHORER T664-d3=7 1—<5
; AOGIE TLY: 25 PBN, OTEER: 25 PP
[TEOPROPANGL, 67-63-0 15

I OSEA PEL: 400 PPM, ACUIH TLV: 400 PEM
i
I

3. HAZARDS IDENTIFICATION L

T OONSTHERED EAZARDOUS UNDER NORIGAL ECNDITIONS,
CAUISE EYE AND SKYWN IRRITATION

otential Health Effccts

*
IRECT COITACT MAY CAUSE TRRITATION

B oo s

@m NEON 1 '
; OR MEST CAN CAUSE READACHE, NAUSEA, AND IRRITAICN
F THE NOSE, THROAT AND LUNGS.

é C 2 : > H
:mqm L SCANCER) INFORMATION

M (BIRTH DEFECT) INFORMATION:

i
|
]
)



PATA SEHEEET

} MATERIAL SAFETY
Dat%,?xintedz 5/19/2010 Page: 3
| -
Seodibt Goda: Z8i160
‘Prodast Natd: ERATIEC LASEX WHISE E/D {zrpE YTy
Qalbkad Paint, {747 Holly Stweet, Demver, oo. 80215
2é~hour Emepgengy Yhone: 1.800.424.9200
i Bm MEDIA: ;
FonK, FORM, COZ, DRY CHEMICAL, WATER FOG
6. 2 .
sMaty, Ebryam.
CORFINE TO A SMALL AREA: USE ABSORBENT TO CLEAN UP. PLACE
IN CONTAINER FOR DISPOSAL.
IARGE SPIYL+
oy
nxmm»mupmnmmmmm
BALVAGE DRUMS FOR PROPER DISPOSAL.
Fia_ MW i ; e

* HATERTA mmmmmcasmmm:mm
'mmnmmr.

Emnmn 5mm vz&mr:rw IS RECOM{ENDED
ér ?ﬁ%m ARE :xcmn:n OR IF APPLIED BY SPRATING,

bmi Aﬂﬂdﬂ,ﬂm + EROPERLY FITTED NYOSA/HSHA WEPROVED
BSPTRATOR. REFER TO OSBA 29 CFR 1910-134 “HESPIAATOR.

ROTECTION" .
|

i PROTECTTON :
%M GLOVES SUCH AS NITRILE RUBBER.

pmmmhmmﬁ;



EHEET

{ MATERIAL SAFETY DATA
Date Printed: 5/197/2010

Page: &

Prodncti Coda: EB1160
Broduct! Nama: TRAFYIC LASEX WHIZE ¥/D (TYEX IX)

Colorad Paint, 4¥47 Hally Btseet, Deaver, CO. BO21E
C-Mq Boongehcy Ehons: 1:800.424.9300

GHEMICAL SPLASE GOGGLES TN COMPLIANCE WITH OSHA REGULATIONS
ARE ADVISED.

g. pa'-?s:c_ca:- AND CHEMYCAY, BROPERTIES

ﬁon.ma rom >zeo DEG r

8. 0 - 10.5
MISTICOFAWM SISTEM RANCGING

gnmamwommmmm

l'?m:crs ﬁ “raTs HSDS CLASBIFTCATION- MAY VARY FRGY

"? VISCOUS TRARSPARENT LIQUID 1O AN OPARUE GRiI-Pasts

séammm | BHISICAL gam

) d:amcm, STABITLITY mn‘mﬂs ) awem)a

sgrmz

mmzm:bﬁzw:
91:»:}: FNCRN

mzm, mmmmﬂmmm,mu
mm SHOKE, CARBON MOMOXIDE AND CARBOM DIGXIDE.

!

%mms POLYMERTHATTION:

EXPECTED TO OCCUR.

. Wmm

1

EYE: INGONSEQUERTIAL THRTTARION; EANSTT
drcw LE5D >2000 ME/EG; RESBIT
m:w: LDEO >2000 KG/5: RAT
INEALATTON: MO TOXIC

qimoaam‘q‘:c O INFORMATTION



: MATERIAL SAFETY DATA SHEEET
Patel Printed: 5/19/2010 Page: 3

=

{
I
Sabt Code:
- Fawme !
00-504A Fuint, 4747 Holly Stweet, Denver, €O. 80218
E‘“b'ﬁx Fmergency Phona: 1.800.424.9300

zBiis0 ;
TRAVHIC LATEX WET®E ¥/D (ryYe=E 1)

J EXTINGUISHING MEDIA:
; FOAM, ALCOHOL FOAM, C02, DRY CHEMICAL, WATER FOG

fwamm—nmmm BREATHING APFARATUS WITE A FULL FACE
i PIECE OPERATED IN THE POSITIVE PRESSURE DEMAND MODE.
! g

j_GONPINZ 1O A SMALL AREA: USE ABSORBENT TO CLEAM UP. PLACE
IN CONTAINER FOR DISPOSAL.

DIKE AMD PICK UP. AND RECTAIM INTO RECOVERY OF
BALVAGE DRUMS FOR PROPER DISDOSAL.

|

j.m SEILL:
|

HARDLING:
ACUTE: BEE ABOVE, CHRONIC: NONE BRNORN .

H

m 5 NDUSTRIAL v:;wrmrzi:u IS RECOM{ENDED
hxwmm: PROTECTION:

TP EXPLOSURE LIMITS Akp EXCEEDED OR IF APPLIED BY SPRATING,
USE APPROHRIATS , FROPERLY FTTTED NYOSB/HsHA ‘ABPROVED
RESPTRATOR.REFER 70 OUA 25 CFR 1910-134 =RESPIRATOR

Pmm-rm- &

¢ RESISTANT GLOVES such AS NITRILE RUBBER.

;:zs PROIECTTON :



BAFETY QD&_E&. S EEET
Pagae: 5

i MATEERIAL

Date Printed: 5/1%/2010
; Coda: BR1160

.Emdncgfm.
i -
cmwﬁnmghnmmmuuhmMuﬁnsﬁu

24-Bovr Biexgenty Phons: 1.800.424. 5300
[ i
F - ¥ L . - . - v

| CHRONTG/CARCTNOGENICITY: HON CARCINOGENTC
'TERATOLOGY: NO INFORMATTON

;
i

CHEMICAYL. FATE, INFORNENY
‘ﬂw TOKEG YO PLANTS O%: EFSH. NOT

s L

Qmmmaut
* Component {#) réportable as SARA Title ITI wection' 313 chemical {s).*



MATERIAML SAFETY DATA SEREBT

Date EPrint.Ed_: 5/19/2010

!
b3 dt Code: ZB1160
E. it Ramo: TREFPIC IATEX WEITE ¥/D  (FrEx II)

! i
cnlor-éd Paint, 4747 Holly Stroot, Denver, GO. BO21E
24-Bor Eoergecky Phone: 1.800.424.$300

i

1

CANADYIAN WEMIS:
NO INFORMATION

mmrsornzsmmmmm&md

; SUBSTANCES LIST OR ARE EXEMPT FROM REPORTING UMDER THE
i NEW SUBSTANCES NOTIFICATION REGULATIONS

[ . .

| STATR REGULATIONS:

i CALIFORNIA PROP 6% THEIS PRODUCT CONTAIRS -PRACE

| AHOUNTS OF A CHEMICAL{S] XWOWN TO CALIFORNIA TO

! CAUSE CANCER AND/OR BIRTH DEEECTS OR OTHER

i " REPRODUCTIVE HARM

ORGANTIC. COMPOUNDS

< 1’5.0 atk

16. OTEER THFOBMATION

HMEDS Statns: ACTIVE

WE Bnm THAT THE IMPORMAITGN CONTAINED M THES MSDS
usmummnmmmtaﬁmmm W
‘GIVE ¥O . EXPREGSED'OR IMPLIRD AS TO THE AOGURACY
OF THE, ma{, AND ASSUME MO RESPONSTBILITY FOR
,ﬂrmwgwm. PROPERTY, OR HISINESS RRISING FROM 176 USE:




MATERIAL SAFETY DATA_

EEEET

Date Printed: 5/18/2010

Paga: 5

T

wm: £B1160
Wamns TRAYFICQ LATEX WEITE ¥/D (TYPR II)

Goi.o:n}d Paint, A747 golly Street, Denvax, CO. 80216
24-bordr mmhy Phone: 1.800.424.9300

| CHRONIC/CARCINOGENICITY: KON CARCINOGENIC
mmnnomr N¥O INFORMATION
 REPRODUCTION: NO INFORMATION

. | MUTAGENICITY: NO INFORMATION

| .
12. ECOLOGICAL INFORMATION

jmcao—omxm msa >2omn.. BOUATIC INVERTIBRATES
| EC50 >1008 MG/L, PISH LCS0 1000 M5/L

DISPOSE OF IN ACCORDANGE WITE- LOCAL, ‘STATE AND FEDERAL
REGUIATIONS. CONTACT CHEMICAL ‘WASTE DISPOSAL COMPANY
FOR FURTHRE INFORMITION.

|

14. Jlmms&m mqy{s‘os Jeant to be all ipcinsive) .o

ant to ba a&_ina&.ns:.m -

UB mmmrm

THIS PRODUCT AND/OR ALL OF ITS COMPONENTS ARE EITHER
IWMOR‘CXWMTM INVENTORY OF CHEMICAL

| SUBSTANCES

SECTION 313: _
¢ Camponent {#) reportable as SARA Title IYI mection 313 chemical(s).*



Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment
Hazardous Materials and Waste Management Division
Photographic Log for Inspection Conducted under CRS 30-20-113
Arapahoe County Kiowa-Bennett Yard
May 3, 2011

Photo 1: View from CR 137 of the Kiowa-Bennett Yard, looking to the northeast.



Photo 2:  View to the north of the elevated soil stockpile area located in the northeast
portion of the site. The mound apparent in the upper right portion of the photograph is
the south end of a berm that runs in a north south direction. The flat raised soil stockpile
area immediate west of the berm is the general area where the paint dumping location
was observed. See subsequent photos.



Photo 14: View looking north from the paint dumping location, shows relatively flat
ground between the dumping location and the edge of the soil stockpile. '

14



Photo 12: CIosu of what appeard tobea dried-aint fragment found at paintdping
location.

12



/ s e l‘{ 'l\\;; ..f~

Photo 8: lose u view of g surface at paint dumping location with white paint
stain visible.




Photo 7: Closup view of ground surface en at the paint dumpi 1ton with the
yellow paint stain visible.



Photo 6: Closer view of the pt umpmg location.



Photo 5: Closer view of paint dumping location with white stain visible and centered
around the stick lying on the ground.



Photo 3: View to the east-northeast of paint dumping location, roghly where the group
of people are standing.



Photo 20: g view of the asphalt s at the Eastern Service Center, view to the north.

19



; WEE : i) : e :
Photo 19: Closeup view of the ground impacted by paint striping daily cleanout on
asphalt strip at west edge of Eastern Service Center.

18



Photo 18: Asphalt sip at west edge of Eastern Service Center, this is where daily
evacuation occurs of the jets on the paint striping apparatus.

17



Photo 16: View of the pwt dumping location lokmg soth, note crackin g soil
indicative of liquid having ponded on top of a clayey soil.

16



Photo 15: View to the south from a point near the paint duming location, showing the

topography falls off gradually along a haul road.

15



Photo 13 sep of what ar o be white paint fragments at paint dimpin
location.

13



Photo 11: loseup view poi tire double wheeled tire trc tmati at
the dumping location, with whitish stain in the lower half of frame.

11



Photo 10: Close up view of paint dumping location piece of yellow paint visible
just left and high of center frame and white paint stain visible in the upper right quadrant.

10



s

Photo 9: Closeup view of paint dumping Jocation wi yeﬂow pait s visible.



Photo 4: Paint dumping location in foreground, with view to the east-northeast.



